
 

 
CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
Members: Lisa Baker (Winters), Olin Woods (Yolo County), Stephen Streeter (Davis), 

Patrick Guild (West Sacramento), Mollie D’Agostino (Woodland), Andrew 
Furillo (At Large), Frank Reyes (At Large), Vacant (At Large) 

 
This Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting will be held in person at the location below. 
Members of the public who wish to participate remotely may use the zoom link below. 
 
IN-PERSON INFORMATION 
Meeting Date:  Monday March 3, 2025 
Meeting Time:  6:00 PM 
Meeting Place:  Yolo Transportation District 
  350 Industrial Way 
  Woodland CA  
 
ZOOM INFORMATION 
Link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86003859361 
Webinar ID: 860 0385 9361 
 
All participants will be entered into the webinar as attendees. 
 
YoloTD offers teleconference participation in the meeting via Zoom as a courtesy to the public. 
If no voting members of the YoloTD CAC are attending the meeting via Zoom, and a technical 
error or outage occurs with the Zoom feed or Zoom is otherwise disrupted for any reason, the 
YoloTD CAC reserves the right to continue the meeting without remote access.  

Further instructions on how to electronically participate and submit your public comments can 
be found in the Public Participation Instructions note at the end of this agenda.  
To submit a comment in writing, please email to public-comment@yctd.org and write “For 
CAC Public Comment” in the subject line. In the body of the email, include the item number 
and/or title of the item (if applicable) with your comments. All comments received by 4:00 PM 
on Monday, March 3, 2025 will be provided to the YoloTD Citizens Advisory Committee in 
advance and comments submitted during the meeting shall made part of the record of the 
meeting, but will not be read aloud or otherwise distributed during the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86003859361


REGULAR CALENDAR  

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted on or before Friday, 
February 28, 2025 at the Yolo Transportation District Office (350 Industrial Way, Woodland, 
California). Additionally, copies were FAXED or transmitted electronically to the Woodland, 
Davis, West Sacramento, and Winters City Halls, as well as to the Clerk of the Board for the 
County of Yolo.  

Janeene Marte, Clerk of the Board 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
Ti

m
e 

Agenda Item In
fo

rm
at

io
n

A
ct

io
n 

It
em

 

6:00 PM 1. Call to Order, Roll Call X 

6:05 PM 2. Elect Chair and Vice-Chair for 2025 (Marte, p 6) X 

6:15 PM 3. Comments from the public regarding matters NOT on the Agenda, but within 
the purview of YoloTD (Comments will be limited to two (2) minutes per 
person— please identify yourself and in which community you live before 
providing your comments) 

X 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

6:20 PM 4a. Approval of Minutes of CAC’s Regular Meeting on October 29, 2024 and 
January 6, 2025  (Marte, pp 7-12) 

X 

4b. Receive Informational Update on CAC Member Terms (Marte, p 13) X 

4c. Receive Informational Update on Service to Sutter Health Park for the 
2025 Major League Baseball season (Romero, pp 14-24) 

X 

6:55 PM 5. Beeline Service Expansion in Winters and Knights Landing 
(Barrientos/Romero. pp 25-32) 

   

7:25 PM 6. Administrative Reports (Bernstein) 
Discussion regarding subjects not specifically listed is limited to clarifying 
questions. 

A. CAC Members’ Reports
B. Executive Director’s Report
C. Long-Range Calendar (p 33)

X 

8:00 PM 7. Adjournment X 

2

X



 

Public Participation Instructions 

Members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the committee on items 
of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the CAC. Depending on the 
length of the agenda and number of speakers, the Chair reserves the right to limit the time each member 
of the public is allowed to speak to three minutes or less.  
 
ON ZOOM:  
If you are joining the meeting via Zoom and wish to make a comment on an item, click the "raise hand" 
button. If you are joining the webinar by phone only, press *9 to raise your hand. Please wait for the host 
to announce the comment period has opened and indicate that you wish to make a comment at that time. 
The Clerk of the Board will notify the Chair, who will call you by name or phone number when it is your 
turn to comment.  
 
IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING:  
To submit a comment in writing, please email public-comment@yctd.org. In the body of the email, 
include the agenda item number and title with your comments. Comments submitted via email during the 
meeting shall be made part of the record of the meeting but will not be read aloud or otherwise distributed 
during the meeting. To submit a comment by phone in advance of the meeting, please call 530-402-2819 
and leave a voicemail. Please note the agenda item number and title with your comments. All comments 
received by 4:00 PM on Monday, March 3, 2025, will be provided to the CAC in advance. 
 

Americans With Disabilities Act Notice 
 

If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal 
Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Persons seeking an alternative format should 
contact Yolo Transportation District for further information. In addition, a person with a disability who 
requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in a public 
meeting should telephone or otherwise contact Yolo Transportation District as soon as possible and 
preferably at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. We may be reached on (530) 402-2819, via email at 
public-comment@yctd.org or at the following address: 350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 95776. 
 
 
  

3



4



YoloTD Citizens Advisory Committee Framework 

 

5



Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 
Yolo County Transportation District 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776----(530) 661-0816 

Topic: 
Appoint CAC Chair and Vice-Chair 
for 2025 

Agenda Item#: 2 
Action

Agenda Type: Attachments:             Yes          No 

Prepared By: J.Marte Meeting Date:  March 3, 2025 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Appoint Chair and Vice-Chair for 2025, consistent with the CAC’s prior decision to align the leadership 

rotation with the calendar year. 

BACKGROUND: 
During the April 11, 2022 YCTD Board of Directors meeting, the Board voted to move the Chair rotation to 

occur at the beginning of each calendar year and to extend the term of the current Chair through the end of the 
calendar year. 

At the subsequent CAC meeting, the CAC decided to align their rotation of the Citizens Advisory Committee 
Chair and Vice-Chair to sync up with with the rotation of the YoloTD Board of Directors. The CAC agreed that 
nominations for the new Chair and Vice-Chair should occur annually in January.  

In January 2024, Lisa Baker was re-appointed as Chair, and Steven Streeter was appointed as Vice-Chair.  

The Committee should appoint a Chair and a Vice-Chair who will serve in those roles through the end of 2025.  

6



Citizens Advisory Committee 
 YOLO TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816 

Topic: 
Approve Meeting Minutes for Regular 
Meeting of October 29, 2024 and 
January 6, 2025 

Agenda Item#: 
Agenda Type: 

4a 
Action 

  Attachments:             Yes          No 
Prepared By:J.Marte Meeting Date:  March 3, 2025 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Minutes for the Regular Meeting of October 29, 2024 and January 6, 2025 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The Yolo Transportation District (YoloTD) Citizens Advisory Committee holds regular meetings in compliance 
with the Brown Act and public records laws. Those meetings are recorded in minutes, which are to be retained, 
in perpetuity, in the YoloTD archives. 
 
The purpose of this item is to approve minutes of the Citizens Advisory Committe meeting for the historical 
preservation and posterity for future generations to understand the valuable work considered and accomplished 
by YoloTD. 
 

BUDGET IMPACTS: 
 
There are no anticipated financial impacts. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Minutes 
  

7



CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTE MEETING 
MINUTES 

January 6, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
Yolo Transportation District Board Room 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 

1. Roll Call - Determination of Quorum

Chair Baker called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

Committee Members Present: 

Lisa Baker, Chair (Winters) 
Stephen Streeter, Vice-Chair (Davis) 
Patrick Guild (West Sacramento)                  

Olin Woods (Yolo County) 
Frank Reyes (At Large) 
Andrew Furillo (At Large) 

Committee Members Absent: 

Mollie D’Agostino (Woodland) 

Staff Present: 

Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director  
Brian Abbanat, Director of Planning 
Lola Torney, Senior Transportation Planner  

2. Public Comments

No Public Comment 

3. Consent Calendar

The Committee noted adjustments were needed to the minutes from the October 29, 2024 meeting and deferred 
their approval to a future consent calendar. 

Consent Calendar items: 
3. Approval of Minutes of CAC’s Regular Meeting on October 29, 2024

Regular Calendar 

4. Short-Range Transit Plan: Receive Informational Presentation on Transit Service Planning

Senior Transportation Planner Torney gave a presentation on Transit Service Planning and fielded inquiries 
from the Committee.  

Chair Baker called for public comment.  

8



No Public Comment. 

Seeing no further comments, Chair Baker closed public comments. 

Seeing no further comments or questions from the Committee members, Chair Baker closed discussion on 
the item.  

5. Woodland Transit Center Relocation Update

Director of Planning Abbanat gave a presentation and fielded inquiries from the Committee. 

Chair Baker called for public comment.  

No Public Comment  

Seeing no further comments, Chair Baker closed public comments. 

Seeing no further comments or questions from the Committee members, Chair Baker closed discussion on 
the item.  

6. Administrative Reports

A. CAC Members’ Reports

Committee Member Furillo shared that January 13, 2025 is the next Davis Transportation Commission 
meeting and CalTrans will be hosting a workshop on January 16, 2025. 

Committee Member Guild provided updates on the SacMoves Coalition.  

B. Executive Director’s Reports

Executive Director Bernstein announced restoration of Express Routes will take effect on January 19, 2025. 
Additionally, upcoming Budget Workshops are tentatively scheduled for April 2025. The Executive Director 
also mentioned ongoing collaboration with Fourth & Hope regarding transportation needs and provided 
updates on the Yolo80 project. 

C. Long-Range Calendar

Executive Director Bernstein reviewed the Long-Range Calendar 

8. Adjournment

Seeing no further business, Chair Baker adjourned the meeting at 7:31 pm. 

Respectfully Submitted, Janeene Marte, Clerk of the Board  

 

9



CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

October 29, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
Yolo Transportation District Board Room 350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 

3. Roll Call - Determination of Quorum

Chair Baker called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Committee Members Present: 

Lisa Baker, City of Winters  Mollie D'Agostino, City of Woodland 
Olin Woods, Yolo County Frank Reyes, At Large 
Stephen Streeter, City of Davis 
Andrew Furillo, At Large 

Staff Present: 

Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director  
Daisy Romero, Director of Transit Operations 

4. General Public Comments

No public comment. 

5. Consent Calendar

3a. Approve CAC Minutes for Regular Meeting of July 22, 2024
3b. Approve 2025 Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Calendar

Vice-Chair Streeter motioned to approve item 3b, Approve 2025 Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting 
Calendar, to pull item 3a for discussion. Committee Member Reyes seconded this motion. Committee 
members Streeter, Furillo, Baker, Woods, D’Agostino, and Reyes voted aye, and Committee member Guild 
was absent. 

Committee Member Woods asked the committee to review consent agenda item 3a. Committee member 
Woods noted he was absent from the July 2024 meeting and should be listed as absent. 

Chair Baker asked for a motion to approve item 3a with the correction. Committee member Streeter made the 
motion and committer member Furillo seconded the motion.  

Item 4a passed unanimously. 

Executive Director Bernstein discussed the new schedule for Citizens Advisory Committee meetings and its 
potential impact on feedback incorporation. 

Regular Calendar 

6. Review and Recommend Proposed Service Changes and Restorations for Davis Express Routes 43,
43R, 230 and 44

10



Daisy Romero, Director of Transit Operations, shared background information on the express routes and 
discussed the current operational status of the 43R, 230, and 44 routes. She explained the service changes that 
have occurred due to the impact of COVID-19, driver shortages, and state mandates. 

Daisy Romero, Director of Transit Operations detailed the travel survey conducted to gather insights on Davis 
commuters. The survey findings reveal commuting patterns and preferred departure times. Proposed service 
changes include adding trips for the 43 and 230 routes. The 44 route is proposed to be restored, with specific 
trip details provided. 

Committee Member Woods inquired about the low ridership on the 230 route in January. 

Daisy Romero, Director of Transit Operations, discussed potential reasons for the low ridership and the need for 
updated data. 

Committee Member Reyes discussed the potential for adding quick trips and revenue service between 
Woodland and Davis. 

Committee Member Furillo suggested consolidating stops and straightening routes for better efficiency. 

Daisy Romero, Director of Transit Operations, explained the decision to keep downtown routing consistent with 
other express routes. 

Executive Director Bernstein mentioned ongoing conversations with Sacramento Regional Transit and Capital 
Corridor for improved service. 

No public comment. 

7. Provide Feedback on Proposal for Special Budget Workshops

Executive Director Bernstein introduced the proposal for special budget workshops to provide detailed 
information on funding sources, cost allocation, and future outlook. The first workshop will focus on state and 
federal funding sources, with input from experts. The second workshop will cover local funding sources and cost 
allocation, including the impact of COVID-19 on the budget. The third workshop will explore options for growing 
revenues or reducing costs. 

Executive Director Bernstein outlined the goals of the budget workshops, including exploring funding sources, 
reducing costs, and balancing the budget, and noting that the next step is to present the proposal to the board at 
the November meeting. 

Chair Baker suggested that the first workshop be a kickoff event to facilitate a joint meeting with the board. 

Committee Member D’Agostino emphasized the importance of including discussions on state SACCOG unmet 
transit needs assessment in the workshops. 

Executive Director Bernstein clarified that these topics are part of the TDA funding process and are included in 
the workshops. 

Committee Member D’Agostino inquired about the timeline for the unmet transit needs decision process and 
suggested coordinating meetings to affect decision-making. 

Executive Director Bernstein explained the timeline, including public meetings and the state hub board review. 

11



Committee Member Furillo expressed excitement about the workshops and hopes they will educate board 
members on the value of transit and highlighted the need to focus on increasing revenue rather than reducing costs 
when facing financial challenges. 

Chair Baker supported making the process more transparent and suggested promoting it on the website. 

Executive Director Bernstein provided additional context on the evolution of the budget workshops and the 
importance of understanding service levels and funding. 

No public comment. 

8. Administrative Reports
D. CAC Members’ Verbal Reports

Chair Baker introduced new committee member Reyes, who provided a brief background on his experience 
and involvement in public health. 

E. Executive Director’s Verbal Report

Executive Director Bernstein welcomed the new clerk of the board and the new senior planner. She outlined 
the upcoming projects, which include updating the short-range transit plan, expanding the Beeline service, 
and relocating the Woodland Transit Center. 

9. Adjournment

Seeing no further business, Chair Baker adjourned the meeting at 7:33 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Denise Silva 
_______________________________ 
Denise Silva, Board Clerk 

12



Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 
Yolo County Transportation District 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816 

Topic: 
Informational Update on CAC Member 
Terms Agenda Item#: 4b 

Information
Agenda Type: Attachments:             Yes          No 

Prepared By:  J.Marte Meeting Date: March 3, 2025 

RECOMMENDATION: 
No action is required at this time. This report is provided for informational purposes only, at the request 
of the CAC.  

Citizens Advisory Committee Current Term Dates: 

Winters Lisa Baker 4/13/2015 
Davis Stephen Streeter 12/14/2020-12/14/2024 

Woodland Mollie D’Agostino  2/8/2021-2/8/2025 

West Sacramento Patrick Guild 1/11/2021 -2/8/2025 

At-Large Andy Furillo 2/8/2021-2/8/2025 

At-Large             Frank Reyes                      10/28/2024- 10/28/2028 

13



CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776 --- (530) 661-0816 

Topic:  
Information Update on Service to 
Sutter Health Park for the 2025 Major 
League Baseball Season 

Agenda Item#: 4c 
Information 

 Agenda Type: Attachments:             Yes          No 

Prepared By: D. Romero Meeting Date: March 3, 2025 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Receive an informational update on existing Yolobus service to Sutter Health Park in West Sacramento and plans to 
add “sweeper” buses to existing Route 42A/B service to meet anticipated demand during the 2025 baseball season.   
 

BACKGROUND: 
Starting in March 2025, Sutter Health Park in West Sacramento will be home to the Major League Baseball team, 
the Athletics (A’s) as well as the Minor League Baseball team, the Sacramento River Cats.  
2025 Baseball Season for the Rivercats and A’s at Sutter Health Park:  
The Sacramento River Cats are a Minor League Baseball team of the Pacific Coast League (PCL) and are the Triple-
A affiliate of the San Francisco Giants. This 2025 Minor league year they will be playing 69 homes games with 
game start time ranging from 12pm, 1p, and 6:45pm. See Attachment A: River Cats 2025 Schedule. 
In 2024 the Major League Baseball team the Athletics (A’s) announced that they would not be returning to the 
Oakland Coliseum but instead would relocate to Las Vegas in 2028. However, while the Athletics are waiting for 
their new stadium to be built, they have agreed to temporarily relocate to West Sacramento and play at Sutter Health 
Park beginning in 2025 through 2027. With the Athletics gearing up for the 2025 season, they are expected to play 
a total of 81 homes games with game start times ranging from 1pm and 7pm. See Attachment B: Athletics 2025 
Schedule.  
The arrival of a Major League Baseball team with a loyal fan base in the Bay Area raises questions about how fans 
from across Northern California can access the park using public transit. Luckily, Yolobus is well-positioned to 
serve both local and long-distance fans, with direction connections from Sutter Health Park to Amtrak, SacRT Light 
Rail and the Sacramento Airport, as well as neighborhoods in West Sacramento, Davis and Woodland.  
Existing Yolobus Service to Sutter Health Park:  
Yolobus already provides high-quality transit service to Sutter Health Park. Currently, Yolobus has eastbound and 
westbound stops that directly serve Sutter Health Park on Tower Bridge Gateway, immediately adjacent to the north 
side of the ballpark. Both stops have shelters, trash receptacles, benches, adequate sidewalks and lighting. 
Sutter Health Park is served by the following Yolobus routes: 
Intercity 42A/B: Our backbone intercity loop service that connects West Sacramento, Davis, Woodland, 
Sacramento Airport, and Downtown Sacramento. Service runs hourly from 5 am to 11 pm, with 30-minute service 
during peak times. Popular stops include the Golden 1 Center, Sutter Health Park, J at 6th St. (near Sac Valley Amtrak 
Station), J at 8th (SacRT light Rail Station), 5th and I/G St. (near Davis Amtrak Station), and the Sacramento Airport. 
Cost per Trip is $2.25 one for regular and $1for Discount Riders. 

14



West Sacramento Locals: Route 37 Southport Local, Route 40 Local, Route 41 Local and Route 240 Local. Service 
runs hourly from 5:30 am to 10 pm. These routes serve the Southport, Bryte and Broderick neighborhoods, West 
Sacramento Transit Center, Sutter Health Park, Capitol Mall at 7th ( SacRT Light Rail Station), N at 7th (SacRT Light 
Rail stations) and 9th and L St. (Close Proximity to Sac Valley Station).  
Davis Express Routes: Route 43 Express, Route 44 Express and Route 230 Express. These routes provided limited 
commute trips between Davis neighborhoods and downtown Sacramento, with stops at Sutter Health Park, Capitol 
Mall at 7th (SacRT Light Rail Station), 10th at N St. (SacRT Light Rail stations) Old Town Sacramento (parking), 
and 9th and L St. (Close Proximity to Sac Valley Station).  Cost per Trips is $3.25 one for regular and $1.25 for 
Discount Riders. 
With all of these routes servicing Sutter Health Park and downtown Sacramento, travelers can expect Yolobus 
service between the ballpark and downtown Sacramento approximately every 15 minutes for most of the day. 
Games are anticipated to start around 1pm and 7pm. These start times work well with our existing service.  It is 
common for baseball games to host pre- and post-game events such as Fireworks night, Sunday Funday, Gameday 
giveaways and Fan-fests. For fans arriving at the ballpark between noon and 7 pm, existing Yolobus routes will be 
able to easily meet those needs because of the extensive service that we operate. 
Our service begins to taper off in the evening, when the 7 pm games conclude. Nonetheless, fans still have options 
to ride Yolobus after the game.  
According to the Major League Baseball Association, the average length of a baseball game in 2024 was 
approximately 2 hours and 36 minutes. Assuming conservatively that a game takes 3 hours to complete, baseball 
fans can still catch the 42A/B to downtown Sacramento, Davis or Woodland.  The last two trips of the 42A (toward 
Davis) depart Sutter Health Park at 10:15 pm and 11:00 pm. The last two trips of the 42B (toward Sacramento) 
depart Sutter Health Park at 10:35 and 11:20.    
See Attachment C for 42A/B Schedules. 
See attachment D for 42A/B Maps.  
Sweeper Bus Service: 
In anticipation of higher-than-average demand after evening games end, YoloTD staff propose adding extra capacity 
to our existing 42A/B service on days with 7 pm games. This would not be a new route or new trips. Instead, we 
would add a second bus that runs behind the regularly-scheduled bus, essentially doubling the capacity. Known as a 
‘sweeper’ bus, when the first bus gets too full to accept any more passengers, the second bus sweeps in to pick up 
any remaining passengers.    
This concept is not new to Yolobus – we operate sweeper buses on an occasional basis. A standard city bus seats 
40-45 passengers. When Yolobus drivers encounter capacity issues, sweeper buses are used to pick up additional 
riders. In these cases, a driver will radio our dispatcher and inform our team that an additional bus is needed to pick 
up the remaining riders. The sweeper bus will come and pick up those riders and continue its normal route as drop 
off only. Once all riders have been dropped off, the sweeper bus will go out of service. Currently, we use sweeper 
buses to accommodate overflow at the County Fair Mall for our route 42B. These sweeper buses help us 
accommodate large numbers of riders heading to UC Davis from Woodland.  
For the upcoming 2025 Major League Baseball season at Sutter Health Park, we propose to run two (2) sweeper 
buses, on game nights only, for the first regularly-scheduled 42A and 42B trips immediately after the game ends. 
The sweepers will start at the Tower Bridge Gateway at Sutter Health Park eastbound and westbound bus stops.  
The Route 42A westbound sweeper bus will serve all regular stops from Sutter Health Park to the UC Davis 
Memorial Union, with stops serving various Park and Ride lots and the Davis Amtrak station.  
The Route 42B eastbound sweeper bus will travel into downtown Sacramento where it will serve all downtown 
Sacramento stops, including access to SacRT light rail stations, Sacramento Valley Amtrak station, and the Old 
Town Parking Garage.   

15



YoloTD staff propose to pilot sweeper bus service for one baseball season and afterward continue our conversations 
with the City of West Sacramento and partners to see if further expansion or the continuation of the sweeper service 
is needed.  
See Attachment E for List of Bus Stops 
See Attachment F for Map of Sweeper service at Route 42A/B. 

Marketing and Partnerships 
In June of 2024, YoloTD staff meet with Sutter Health Park representatives to discuss potential collaborations and 
promotional partnerships to encourage fans to take Yolobus to the game. It was a positive discussion, but no 
commitments were made.  We will continue to work with the City of West Sacramento and the Park to identify 
opportunities for collaboration and cross-promotion. 
YoloTD is prepared to independently market our service to baseball fans via our existing social media and newsletter. 
Our marketing team has begun developing draft marketing collateral, an example of which is included below.  

������������� Big news, baseball fans! As the A’s 
take the field at Sutter Health Park this 
season, we’re getting you there hassle-free! 
Hop on and ride with Yolobus—we’ll drop 
you off right at the stadium. No parking 
stress, just game-day excitement!��������  
#RideWithYoloTD #GameDayMadeEasy 
#RootedInYolo 

BUDGET IMPACT: 
YoloTD staff estimate that the two additional sweeper buses will cost approximately $10,500 for the 2025 baseball 
season. This amount is within the signing authority of the Executive Director, so no action is required by the Board. 

FEEDBACK FROM YoloTD BOARD: 
YoloTD Board asked us to continue working with our Regional Partners at Sacramento Regional Transit, Capitol 
Corridor, Sutter Health Park and the City of West Sacramento in regard to promotional items and outreach. 

16



ABQ
ELP
LV
OKC
RNO

RR
SL
TAC
SUG

Albuquerque Isotopes
El Paso Chihuahuas
Las Vegas Aviators
Oklahoma City Baseball Club
Reno Aces

Round Rock Express
Salt Lake Bees
Tacoma Rainiers
Sugar Land Space Cowboys

17



SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

M
AR

CH
/A
PR

IL

23

30

6

13

20

27

24

31

7

14

21

28

25

1

8

15

22

29

26

2

9

16

23

30

27

3

10

17

24

28

4

11

18

25

29

5

12

19

26

SEA SEA SEA

SEA CHC CHC CHC COL COL

COL SD SD SD NYM NYM

NYM CWS CWS CWS MIL MIL

MIL TEX TEX TEX CWS CWS

CWS TEX TEX TEX

7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

1:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

12:35PM

12:35PM

7:05PM 7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

1:05PM

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

M
AY

4

11

18

25

5

12

19

26

6

13

20

27

7

14

21

28

1

8

15

22

29

2

9

16

23

30

3

10

17

24

31

TEX MIA MIA

MIA SEA SEA SEA NYY NYY

NYY LADLAD LAD SF SF

SF LAA LAA LAA LAA PHI PHI

PHI HOU HOU TOR TOR TOR

7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

1:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

12:35PM

7:05PM 12:35PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

7:05PM

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

JU
NE

1

8

15

22

29

2

9

16

23

30

3

10

17

24

4

11

18

25

5

12

19

26

6

13

20

27

7

14

21

28

TOR MIN MIN MIN MIN BAL BAL

BAL LAA LAA LAA KC KC

KC HOU HOU HOU HOU CLE CLE

CLE DET DET DET NYY NYY

NYY TB

7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

1:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

12:35PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

JU
LY

6

13

20

27

7

14

21

28

1

8

15

22

29

2

9

16

23

30

3

10

17

24

31

4

11

18

25

5

12

19

26

TB TB SF SF

SF ATL ATL ATL TOR TOR

TOR ASG CLE CLE

CLE TEX TEX TEX HOU HOU HOU

HOU SEA SEA SEA
7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

6:05PM 7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

AU
GU

ST

3

10

17

24

31

4

11

18

25

5

12

19

26

6

13

20

27

7

14

21

28

1

8

15

22

29

2

9

16

23

30

AZ AZ

AZ WSH WSH WSH BAL BAL

BAL TB TB TB LAA LAA

LAA MIN MIN MIN SEA SEA

SEA DET DET DET TEX TEX

TEX

7:05PM

7:05PM

1:05PM

1:05PM

1:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

SE
PT
EM

BE
R

7

14

21

28

1 2 3 4

8

15

22

29

9

16

23

30

10

17

24

11

18

25

5

12

19

26

6

13

20

27

STL STL STL LAA LAA

LAA BOS BOS BOS CIN CIN

CIN BOS BOS BOS PIT PIT

PIT HOU HOU HOU KC KC

KC

7:05PM

1:05PM

12:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

12:35PM

7:05PM 12:35PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

7:05PM

HOME AWAY
Games/times subject to change

All game times in PT

2025 SCHEDULE
A T H L E T I C S  B A S E B A L L

18



���������	
���������
���

�����������������
����� !
	"����#�"��
 !

$%& '()*+,')- �,./,01'2* 23,+34*()/5 1*2)�23,+34*()/5 637'251//6.3(6 5248�3'+9/+) 5 $%: '()*+,')- ,/;()*+<,./,01'2* 5 5 5 5 51//6.3(6 23,+34*()/1*2)�23,+34*()/637'21//6.3(6 248�3'+9/+) 1//6.3(6

=>??@>??@>A?B>??B>A?C>??
C>A?D>E=E?>??E?>F=EE>A?EG>E=

E>??E>F=G>A?A>E=F>??F>A?
=>??=>A?@>??@>A?B>E=C>??

C>F=D>A?E?>E=
HI�JKLM�N�JKOPQR=>?@@>?@@>A@

B>?@B>A@C>?@C>A@D>GEE?>?@
E?>=EEE>A@EG>GEE>?@E>=EG>A@

A>GEF>?@F>A@=>?@=>A@@>?@
@>A@B>GEC>?@C>=ED>A@E?>GE

SLRTQRO�UVRPLMKW�S=>G?@>G@@>=@
B>G@B>=@C>G@C>=ED>A@E?>GE

EE>?@EE>=EEG>A@E>GEG>?@G>=E
A>A@F>GFF>=F=>GF=>=F@>GF

@>=FB>A@C>GED>?@D>=EE?>A@
SLRTQRO�UVRPLMKW�X=>GG@>GD@>=D

B>GDB>=DC>GDC>=AD>ACE?>GA
EE>?CEE>=AEG>ACE>GAG>?CG>=A

A>ACF>GBF>=B=>GB=>=B@>GB
@>=BB>ACC>GAD>?CD>=AE?>AC

Y�N�COZ=>A@@>F=B>E=B>F
=C>E=C>F=D>?CD>=AE?>ACE

E>GAEG>?CEG>=AE>ACG>GAA>?C
A>=AF>FF=>EF=>FF@>EF@>FF

B>EFB>=AC>ACD>GAE?>?CE?>=A
[�N�=OZ�\]QŴVM�E�_VMOVR̀=>F?@>FDB>ED

B>FDC>EDC>FDD>EGD>=BE?>FG
EE>GBEG>EGEG>=BE>FGG>GBA>EG

A>=BF>FC=>EC=>FC@>EC@>FC
B>ECB>=BC>FGD>GBE?>EGE?>=B

aVbO�cKd�U_=>F=@>=@B>G@B
>=@C>G@C>=@D>ECE?>?AE?>FC

EE>AAEG>ECE>?AE>FCG>AAA>EC
F>?AF>===>G==>==@>G=@>==

B>G=C>?AC>FCD>AAE?>ECEE>?A
aI�_KTLOQW�N�HMOVRTRLbV=>=BB>?DB>AD

C>?DC>ADD>?DD>AEE?>E@EE>?E
EE>F@EG>AEE>E@G>?EG>F@A>AE

F>E@=>?C=>AC@>?C@>ACB>?C
B>ACC>E@D>?ED>F@E?>AEEE>E@

JKdV�N�GM̂@>?BB>G?B>=?C
>G?C>=?D>G?D>FAE?>GCEE>EA

EE>=CEG>FAE>GCG>EAG>=CA>FA
F>GC=>G?=>=?@>G?@>=?B>G?

B>=?C>GCD>EAD>=CE?>FAEE>GC
=OZ�N�_KMORLWW@>EFB>GCB>=C

C>GCC>=CD>GCD>=?E?>A=EE>G?
EG>?=EG>=?E>A=G>G?A>?=A>=?

F>A==>GC=>=C@>GC@>=CB>GC
B>=CC>A=D>G?E?>?=E?>=?EE>A=

e_�fKgLb�JVPQRLKW�eMLQM@>A?B>FAC>EA
C>FAD>EAD>FAE?>?=E?>=?EE>A=

EG>G?E>?=E>=?G>A=A>G?F>?=
F>=?=>FA@>EA@>FAB>EAB>FA

C>EAC>=?D>A=E?>G?EE>?=EE>=?
SM̂VRbQM�N�hKMQgVR@>A=B>=GC>GG

C>=GD>GGD>=GE?>EGE?>=BEE>FG
EG>GBE>EGE>=BG>FGA>GBF>EG

F>=B=>=G@>GG@>=GB>GGB>=G
C>GGC>=BD>FGE?>GBEE>EGEE>=B

_QiMOj�kKLR�JKWW�SRRLgV@>FCC>?=C>A=
D>?=D>A=E?>?=E?>G=EE>E?EE>==

EG>F?E>G=G>E?G>==A>F?F>G=
=>E?@>?=@>A=B>?=B>A=C>?=

C>A=D>E?D>==E?>F?EE>G=EG>E?
_QiMOj�kKLR�JKWW�fVTKRO=>G?=>=?@>G

?@>=?B>G?B>=?C>A=D>G?
E?>?=E?>=?EE>A=EG>G?E>?=E>=?

G>A=A>G?A>=?F>G?F>=?=>G?
=>=?@>A=B>G?C>?=C>=?D>A=

E?>G?
SM̂VRbQM�N�hKMQgVR=>AF@>?F@>AF

B>?FB>AFC>?FC>FDD>AFE?>ED
EE>?FEE>FDEG>AFE>EDG>?FG>FD

A>AFF>?FF>AF=>?F=>AF@>?F
@>FCB>AAC>ECD>?AD>FCE?>AA

e_�fKgLb�JVPQRLKW�eMLQM=>FA@>EA@>F
AB>EAB>FAC>EEC>=@D>FE

E?>G@EE>EEEE>=@EG>FEE>G@G>EE
G>=@A>FAF>EAF>FA=>EA=>FA

@>EA@>=AB>ACC>GAD>?CD>=A
E?>AC

=OZ�N�_KMORLWW=>=@@>G@@>=@
B>G@B>=@C>GFD>?DD>=FE?>AD

EE>GFEG>?DEG>=FE>ADG>GFA>?D
A>=@F>G@F>=@=>G@=>=@@>G@

B>?@B>=EC>A@D>GEE?>?@E?>=E
JKdV�N�GM̂@>?@@>A@B>?@

B>A@C>?@C>AFD>EDE?>?FE?>FD
EE>AFEG>EDE>?FE>FDG>AFA>ED

F>?@F>A@=>?@=>A@@>?@@>A@
B>E@C>?EC>F@D>AEE?>E@EE>?E

aI�_KTLOQW�N�HMOVRTRLbV@>EC@>FCB>E
CB>FCC>ECC>F=D>A?E?>E=

EE>??EE>F=EG>A?E>E=G>??G>F=
A>A?F>ECF>FC=>EC=>FC@>EC

@>FCB>G=C>E?C>==D>F?E?>G=
EE>E?

aVbO�cKd�U_@>A?B>??B>A?
C>??C>A?C>=@D>FEE?>G@EE>EE

EE>=@EG>FEE>G@G>EEG>=@A>FE
F>A?=>??=>A?@>??@>A?B>??

B>AGC>EBD>?GD>FBE?>AGEE>EB
Y�N�COZ@>FAB>EAB>FAC

>EAC>FAD>?@D>=EE?>A@EE>GE
EG>?@EG>=EE>A@G>GEA>?@A>=E

F>FA=>EA=>FA@>EA@>FAB>EA
B>ADC>GFD>?DD>=FE?>ADEE>GF

[�N�=OZ�\]QŴVM�E�_VMOVR̀@>FCB>ECB
>FCC>ECC>FCD>EED>==E?>F?

EE>G=EG>E?EG>==E>F?G>G=A>E?
A>==F>FC=>EC=>FC@>EC@>FC

B>ECB>FAC>GCD>EAD>=CE?>FA
EE>GC

SLRTQRO�UVRPLMKW�SB>?=B>A=C>?=
C>A=D>?=D>G=E?>E?E?>==EE>F?

EG>G=E>E?E>==G>F?A>G=F>E?
=>?==>A=@>?=@>A=B>?=B>A=

B>=CC>FAD>GCE?>EAE?>=CEE>FA
SLRTQRO�UVRPLMKW�XB>?BB>ABC>?B

C>ABD>?BD>GCE?>EAE?>=CEE>FA
EG>GCE>EAE>=CG>FAA>GCF>EA

=>?B=>AB@>?B@>ABB>?BB>AB
C>?EC>F@D>AEE?>E@EE>?EEE>F@

HI�JKLM�N�JKOPQRB>GGB>=GC>GG
C>=GD>GGD>FEE?>G@EE>EEEE>=@

EG>FEE>G@G>EEG>=@A>FEF>G@
=>GG=>=G@>GG@>=GB>GGB>=G

C>EFC>=DD>FFE?>GDEE>EFEE>=D
_QiMOj�kKLR�JKWW�SRRLgVB>A?C>??C>A

?D>??D>A?D>FCE?>AAEE>EC
EG>FCE>AAG>ECA>?AA>FCF>AA

=>A?@>??@>A?B>??B>A?C>??
C>G?D>?=D>=?E?>A=EE>G?EG>?=

lmnm o&pq&�rstu lrot�o&p m&vwo lmnmo&pq&�rstulrot�o&pm&vwolmnmlmnm!! !! _QiMOj�kKLR�JKWW�fVTKRO ! ! !!

lmnm o&pq&�rstu lrot�o&p m&vwo lmnmo&pq&�rstulrot�o&pm&vwolmnmlmnm

>?AEG
xyz�{"|}��
�	��~	���~��|

�	"|��#���y���
�}����
�����|��
�����yxz

����������
�����}������������!���
�

������������}�
������}��#!�

������}��#!�

19



Downtown Sacramento

Yolo County Transportation District Yolo County Transportation District 

T Transit Center

Timepoints

Other Bus Stops

Landmarks

15th
 St

.

5th
 St.

7th
 St.

H St.

State
Capitol

6th
 St.

8th
 St.

9th
 St.

10th
 St.

11th
 St

.

14th
 St

.

I St.

J St.

K St.

L St.

Q St.

13th
 St

.

12th
 St

.

Downtown
Plaza3r

d 
St

.

P St.

O St.

N St.

K St.

5t
h 

St
.

Old
Sacramento

Amtrak

16th
 St

.

Ziggurat

Raley Field

West 
Sacramento

Downtown
Sacramento

L St.

J St.

9t
h 

St
.

7t
h 

St
.

3r
d 

St
.

42B

To
wer B

rid
ge G

tw
y

West Sacramento
Transit Center

Je�erson Blvd.

West Capitol Ave.

5th St.

F St.

E St.

5

42B

TOWER BRIDGE

T

42A

42A

42B

42A

9th
at K St.L St.

at 5th

N

Capitol Mall

Route 42A and 42B

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 95776
custserv@yctd.org | (530) 666-2877
Yolobus.com | YoloTD.org

Fb.com/Yolobus @YolobusYCTD @YolobusYCTD

Last Updated: May 2023

Routes 42A and 42B provide hourly service, seven days a week, via an intercity clockwise and counter-clockwise loop. This service runs through 
parts of Woodland stopping at the airport and moves into Downtown Sacramento and the City of Davis. 

20



City of Davis

N 

Russell 

Hutchison 

Alhambra

Covell 

Covell 

14th 

Russell 

A
nd

er
so

n

A
nderson

A
rt

hu
r 

La
 R

ue
 

B St. 1st St.

Richards 

Chiles 

M
ac

e

Pole Line 

F St.

5th St. 

A St. 

Covell 

Villanova 

El Cemonte 

Chile
s

University 
Mall 

113 

80 

Anderson 
at Hanover 

Anderson 
Plaza 

Community 
Park 

Davis 
High School 

UC Davis 
Memorial Union 

Marketplace 

Downtown 
Davis 

Amtrak 

oT
otnemarcaS

To
Woodland

Lo
yo

la
 Covell 

at Sycamore 
Park &  

Ride Lot 

113 

Pass Outlet 
City Hall 

80 

42
B 

42A
 

5th St. 

42A
 42

B 42A 

42B 

Timepoints

Landmarks

42 Bus Route

Route 42A and 42B 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 95776
custserv@yctd.org | (530) 666-2877
Yolobus.com | YoloTD.org

Fb.com/Yolobus @YolobusYCTD @YolobusYCTD

Routes 42A and 42B provide hourly service, seven days a week, via an intercity clockwise and counter-clockwise loop. This service runs through 
parts of Woodland stopping at the airport and moves into Downtown Sacramento and the City of Davis. 

Other Bus Stops

21



Route 42A/B Proposed Stop Locations to be 
Served by Sweeper Bus  

 
 

 

 
Proposed Stops: 42A Sweeper Proposed Stops: 42B Sweeper

Start Tower Bridge Gtwy at Sutter Health Park (WB) Start Tower Bridge Gateway at Sutter Health park (EB)
Garden at W. Capitol NB Capitol Mall at Front St. (Old Town Sac parking)
Merkley at W. Capitol (W. Sac Transit Center) 5th St. at L St.
W. Capitol at Jefferson J St. at 6th St. (Sac Valley Station)
W. Capitol at Westacre J St. at 8th St.
W. Capitol at Poplar 9th St. at K St. (Light Rail, Blue Line)
W. Capitol at Cedar End L St. at 5th St. (Golden 1 Center)
W. Capitol at Pecan
W. Capitol at Glide
W. Capitol at Harbor
W. Capitol at Pine
W. Capitol at Northport WB
W. Capitol at Roadway Transfer/Park and Ride Locations
W. Capitol at Interstate Co. WB
W. Capitol at Enterprise (Park and Ride)
Mace at 2nd St. (NB) (Park and Ride)
Alhambra at Carcia
5th St & Pelz Bike Path (WB)
5th St & Spafford (WB)
5th St & Cantrill/Greystone (WB)
5th St & Pole Line Rd/D.M.V (WB)
5th St at I St.  (Davis Amtrak)
5th St. at D St. WB
Russell at A St. (Davis City Hall)

End UC Davis Memorial Union

22



Downtown Sacramento

Yolo County Transportation District Yolo County Transportation District 

T Transit Center

Timepoints

Other Bus Stops

Landmarks

15th
 St

.

5th
 St.

7th
 St.

H St.

State
Capitol

6th
 St.

8th
 St.

9th
 St.

10th
 St.

11th
 St

.

14th
 St

.

I St.

J St.

K St.

L St.

Q St.

13th
 St

.

12th
 St

.

Downtown
Plaza3r

d 
St

.

P St.

O St.

N St.

K St.

5t
h 

St
.

Old
Sacramento

Amtrak

16th
 St

.

Ziggurat

Sutter Health Park

West 
Sacramento

Downtown
Sacramento

L St.

J St.

9t
h 

St
.

7t
h 

St
.

3r
d 

St
.

42B Sweeper

42B Sweeper

To
wer B

rid
ge G

tw
y

West Sacramento
Transit Center

Je�erson Blvd.

West Capitol Ave.

5th St.

F St.

E St.

5

TOWER BRIDGE

T42A Sweeper 9th
at K St.L St.

at 5th

N

Capitol Mall

Route 42A and 42B Sweeper Bus

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 95776
custserv@yctd.org | (530) 666-2877
Yolobus.com | YoloTD.org

Fb.com/Yolobus @YolobusYCTD @YolobusYCTD

Last Updated: Feb 2025

Routes 42A and 42B Sweeper Bus in West Sacramento and Downtown sacramento 

42a Sweeper  Bus Route

42B Bus Sweeper Route

23



City of Davis

N 

Russell 

Hutchison 

Alhambra

Covell 

Covell 

14th 

Russell 

A
nd

er
so

n

A
nderson

A
rt

hu
r 

La
 R

ue
 

B St. 1st St.

Richards 

Chiles 

M
ac

e

Pole Line 

F St. 5th St. 

A St. 

Covell 

Villanova 

El Cemonte 

Chile
s

University 
Mall 

113 

80 

Anderson 
Plaza 

Community 
Park 

Davis 
High School 

UC Davis 
Memorial Union 

Marketplace 

Downtown 
Davis 

Amtrak 

oT
otnemarcaSLo

yo
la

 Park &  
Ride Lot 

113 

Pass Outlet 
City Hall 

 5th St. 

42A Sweeper 

Timepoints

Landmarks

Route 42A and 42B 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 95776
custserv@yctd.org | (530) 666-2877
Yolobus.com | YoloTD.org

Fb.com/Yolobus @YolobusYCTD @YolobusYCTD

Route 42A  Sweeper Bus Service in Davis. 

Other Bus Stops

42A Bus Sweeper Route

80 

24



BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816 

Topic: 
Proposed Service Change for BeeLine 
Microtransit in Knights Landing/Yolo 
and Winters  

Agenda Item#: 5
      Action 

Agenda Type: Attachments:             Yes          No 
Prepared By: K. Barrientos and D. Romero Meeting Date: March 3, 2025 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Provide feedback on proposed service change for BeeLine microtransit to expand the hours of service and provide 
additional vehicles during peak hours to meet demand in Knights Landing, Yolo, and Winters. 

The CAC may, at its discretion, make a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the proposed service 
change or a modified version of the proposed service change.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Yolobus microtransit service, BeeLine, formally known as “YOUR Ride” started in Knights Landing in 
August 2019, Winters in March 2020, and Yolo was added to the Knights Landing service zone in July 2024. 
The microtransit service in Knights Landing/Yolo and Winters replaced fixed route (216, 217, 220 and 220C) 
services discontinued due to low ridership and the COVID-19 pandemic.  

BeeLine microtransit is a shared on-demand transportation service that allows users to schedule point-to-point 
on-demand trips and connections to various YoloTD services through a smartphone app, phone, or online 
platform. Each service has its own individual characteristics, with the Knights Landing/Yolo service zone 
including stops in Knights Landing, Yolo, and Woodland and providing service from 8:30 AM to 5:30 PM 
Monday through Friday and Sunday. The Winters service zone includes stops in Winters and parts of Vacaville 
and Davis and provides service from 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM Monday through Saturday.   

With growing demand for BeeLine microtransit in Knights Landing/Yolo and Winters and many would-be 
passengers unable to book rides, the need for extended service hours and additional vehicles is necessary to 
accommodate more passengers and align better with riders' commuting schedules. 

This hearing establishes the 30-day comment period for public feedback regarding proposed updates to the 
schedule for BeeLine microtransit services in Knights Landing/Yolo and Winters. 

Rationale for Updating Schedules 

The Knights Landing/Yolo and Winters schedules were originally adopted in 2019 and 2020. They need 
adjustments to improve efficiency, service accessibility, and rider experience. Ridership fluctuates throughout the 
day, requiring schedule modifications and adjustments to vehicle deployment to meet demand effectively. 

Winters experiences the highest rate of failed ride requests due to a single vehicle serving a large and 
geographically dispersed area. Travel times between Winters and Davis range from 15 to 30 minutes, depending 
on passenger stops. However, when the vehicle returns to Winters without passengers, it results in 15-30 minutes 
of unproductive service time. Similarly, direct trips between Winters and Vacaville take 30-45 minutes, with 
frequent instances of the vehicle returning empty, removing it from service for up to 30 minutes as the vehicle 

25



commutes back to Winters. These inefficiencies limit availability for other riders and reduce overall system 
productivity. 

To address these challenges, adding a second vehicle during peak periods would improve service reliability and 
reduce waiting times. By grouping intercity trips separately from local trips, the system can better accommodate 
demand, optimize vehicle utilization, and enhance the rider experience. 

YoloTD staff analyzed ridership trends over the course of three months, from September to November 2024 to 
evaluate service demand in Knights Landing/Yolo and Winters. This analysis included hourly ridership patterns, 
failed ride requests, and vehicle demand across current service hours. The recommended schedule adjustments 
are based on these findings to better align service availability with rider needs. 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Knights Landing/Yolo Ridership Trends, Failed Searches and Demand Analysis 

Knights Landing/Yolo ridership saw a 22.2% ridership increase in 2024 (2,916 riders) vs 2023 (2,333), as 
shown in Figures 1 and 2 

Figure 1: Knights Landing/Yolo Ridership by Month 

 
* BeeLine microtransit added service to Yolo in July 2024 
 

Figure 2: Knights Landing/Yolo Ridership by Month 

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Knights Landing/Yolo 2023 & 2024 Ridership

Knights Landing 2023 Knights Landing 2024

26



 

 

With this increase in ridership, we have also seen an uptick in the number of “failed searches.” This term 
describes what happens when a passenger tries to book a trip and is unable to do so. As Figure 3 illustrates, the 
highest rate of failed searches in Knights Landing/Yolo happens in the late afternoon, in the final hour of 
service. There is also a high number of failed searches in the first hour of service.  

Figure 3: Failed Searches in Knights Landing/Yolo 

 

Analysis of Demand in Knights Landing/Yolo 

In Knights Landing/Yolo, demand is highest between 8:30–10:00 AM and 4:00–5:30 PM, with BeeLine 
microtransit averaging 4.9 riders in the morning and 1.6 to 3.5 riders in the afternoon. Figure 4 illustrates demand 
for the service by hour of day, and the number of vehicles needed to accommodate riders. While one vehicle is 
sufficient, starting earlier and running a later service could help alleviate the 8:00 AM and 3:00 PM rush. On 
Sundays, the current schedule and vehicle availability adequately serve existing demand. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0 1 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 23

Fa
ile

d 
Se

ar
ch

es

Time of Day

BeeLine Knights Landing - Failed Searches - All Days
September - November, 2024

No Capacity Program Violation Wrong Day/Time

27



Figure 4: Vehicles Needed to Meet Demand in Knights Landing/Yolo by Hour of Day 

 
 

Winters Ridership, Failed Searches and Analysis of Demand 

Winters ridership remained stable from 2023 (3,309 riders) to 2024 (3,313), as illustrated in Figures 5 and 6. 

Figure 5: Winters Ridership by Month, 2023-2024 

 
 

Figure 6: Winters Ridership by Month, 2023-2034 

 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Pa
ss

en
ge

rs

Time of Day

Knights Landing/Yolo Vehicle Demand
September - November 2024

Total Demand (Rides) Current Vehicles Vehicles Required to Meet Demand

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400

Winters 2023 & 2024 Ridership

Winters 2023 Winters 2024

28



From this data, one might assume that demand for the service is flat. However, by looking at failed searches we 
can see that, in fact, demand for the service is significantly higher than ridership trends suggest. Indeed, it is the 
capacity of the service, which is limiting ridership, rather than the other way around.  

Figure 7: Failed Searches in Winters 

Analysis of Demand in Winters 

In Winters, demand peaks between 9:00–11:00 AM and 2:00–4:00 PM, with BeeLine microtransit averaging 2.3 
riders in the morning and three riders in the afternoon. Figure 7 illustrates service demand, and the number of 
vehicles needed to accommodate riders. One vehicle is sufficient for the middle of the day in Winters, but two 
vehicles are recommended during the morning and afternoon peak hours to ensure timely service and meet 
demand effectively. Demand is highest on Thursdays and Fridays, while Mondays and Saturdays experience the 
lowest demand. 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

0 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

Fa
ile

d 
Se

ar
ch

es

Time of Day

BeeLine Winters - Failed Searches - All Days
September - November, 2024

No Capacity Program Violation Wrong Day/Time

29



Figure 8: Winters Service Demand and Vehicles Needed 

 
 

PROPOSED CHANGES  
This section details the proposed changes in the schedule for microtransit service in Knights Landing/Yolo and 
Winters. Changes proposed for each specific zone are highlighted on the following pages.  

The proposed Knights Landing/Yolo service expansion would extend operating hours by starting 1.5 hours 
earlier and ending 1.5 hours later, providing 12 hours of service from 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM, six days a week. 
This expansion aims to better distribute morning and evening demand, particularly around 8:00 AM and 4:00 
PM. The highest number of failed ride requests occurs between 3:00–5:00 PM due to capacity limitations and 
riders rushing to book trips before service ends at 5:30 PM. Extending service later in the evening will help 
accommodate demand. This change would also align the service hours of the Knights Landing/Yolo zone with 
those of the Woodland zone. This internal consistency will reduce confusion for riders who are transferring 
between zones.  
 
Figure 9: Proposed Service Expansion for Knights Landing/Yolo Service Area 

 Current Proposed 
Day Hours of Operation Vehicle Hours of Operation Vehicle 

Monday – Friday 8:30 AM – 5:30 PM 1 7:00 AM – 7:00 PM 1 
 

Saturday No Service 0 No Service 0 
Sunday 8:30 AM – 5:30 PM 1 7:00 AM – 7:00 PM 1 

 

The proposed service expansion for Winters responds to demand by adding an additional vehicle during peak 
hours (7–11 am and 3-6 pm) and expanding the hours of service until later in the evening. The proposed service 
expansion will increase the number of passengers able to use the service and increase the number of shared 
trips.  The proposed expansion of the service is detailed in Figure 9.  
 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Pa
ss

en
ge

rs

Time

Winters Rider and Vehicle Demand 
September - November 2024

Total Demand Current Vehicles Recommended Vehicles

30



Figure 10: Proposed Service Expansion for Winters 

Proposed Service Expansion for Winters 
 Current Proposed 

Day Hours of Operation Vehicle Hours of Operation Vehicles Operating 
During Peak Service 

 
Monday – Friday 

 
8:30 AM – 4:30 PM 

 
1 

7:00 AM – 7:00 PM  
2 7:00 AM – 11:00 AM 

3:00 PM – 6:00 PM 
Saturday 8:30 AM – 4:30 PM 1 7:00 AM – 7:00 PM 1 
Sunday No Service 0 No Service 0 

 

Options for Restoring Fixed Route Bus Service in Winters 

Prior to 2020, the City of Winters was served by two fixed-route bus lines: the 220 and 220C. These routes were 
discontinued and replaced by microtransit.  In response to the currently proposed service change, some Winters 
residents, CAC members and YoloTD Board members have expressed interest in restoring the 220 and 220C 
instead of, or in addition to, the expansion of microtransit.  

Staff recognize the validity of these concerns. We are currently in the process of preparing an updated Short 
Range Transit Plan (SRTP) and Comprehensive Operations Analysis (COA), which will serve as the agency’s 
roadmap for improving transit service over the next five to seven years. An explicit focus area of this SRTP is 
to evaluate YoloTD’s current microtransit service areas and recommend whether any of these areas would be 
better served by a different blend of microtransit and fixed-route service.  

The SRTP is expected to be completed by the end of 2025, with implementation likely to begin in FY 2026-27. 
While the SRTP is under development, an expansion of operating hours and vehicles for BeeLine microtransit 
offers a relatively quick, near-term fix to address the unmet demand for service in Winters.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
On July 8, 2024, the YoloTD board members approved the FY 2024-25 Budget which allows for increasing the 
hours of operation and number of vehicles operating in Winters and Knights Landing/Yolo service areas.  
 
The FY 2024-25 budget conservatively assumed 6,951 service hours in Winters, for an annual cost of $400,000. 
This proposed service expansion is within that budget, with 5,374 service hours at a cost of $320,290. 
 
In Knights Landing/Yolo, the FY 2024-25 budget assumed 6,423 hours and annual cost of $323,000. The 
proposed service expansion is well within that budget, with 3,624 service hours at a cost of $190,043.  
Figure 11 compares the current and proposed costs for BeeLine in both service areas.  
 
Figure 71: Estimated Cost of Proposed Service Expansion 

Service Area Current Proposed Change 
Winters Hours Per Week: 48 

Hours Per Year: 3,161 
Cost Per Year*: $144,470 

Hours Per Week: 107 
Hours Per Year: 5,374 
Cost Per Year*: $320,290 

Hours Per Week: 59 
Hours Per Year: 2,213 
Cost Per Year*: $175,820 

31



Knights 
Landing/ Yolo 

Hours Per Week: 66 
Hours Per Year: 2,846 
Cost Per Year*: $150,188 

Hours Per Week: 72 
Hours Per Year: 3,624 
Cost Per Year*: $190,043 

Hours Per Week: 6 
Hours Per Year: 778 
Cost Per Year*: $39,855 

Total Cost Cost Per Year*: $294,658 Cost Per Year*:  $510,333 Change: $215,675 

* Note that costs only include contracted transportation. Fuel, insurance and other miscellaneous costs will add an
additional 10-15%.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND NEXT STEPS 
YoloTD Staff will incorporate feedback received during the thirty-day comment period and bring the final 
schedule and map of stop locations to the Board for approval at the March 10 Board meeting.  

Outreach Initiatives Currently Underway: 

• Promote an online survey informing the public about the proposed service changes and ask for their
feedback

• Informational signs with the proposed service changes onboard the BeeLine microtransit vehicles and a
link to the survey

• Informational signs at high volume stops in Knights Landing, Yolo, Winters, and Davis

• Work with RideCo to send out in-app messages, push notifications, and emails to current BeeLine
microtransit users informing riders of the proposed changes and linking them to the survey.

• In-person outreach in Knights Landing, Winters, and Yolo

Assuming Board approval, the service changes will take effect in Spring of 2025. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
We invite the Citizens Advisory Committee members to: 

1. Provide feedback and ask questions on this proposed service change.
2. Consider making a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the proposed service change or

a modified version of the proposed service change.
3. Suggest additional data or analysis they would like to see included in future updates and/or service change

proposals.

Discussion Questions for the CAC Feedback: 

1. Does the new schedule for Knights Landing/Yolo and Winters work well for the residents?

2. Are there any areas of concern with the proposed changes?

3. Once the proposed schedule changes are implemented, what metrics should YoloTD track to determine
whether these changes are successful in improving service reliability and meeting ridership demand?

32



Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) 
Yolo County Transportation District 

350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816 

Topic: 
Long-Range Calendar Agenda Item#: 6c 

Information
Agenda Type: Attachments:             Yes          No 

Prepared By:  J.Marte Meeting Date: March 3, 2025 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The following agenda items are tentatively scheduled for upcoming meetings of the YoloTD Board of 
Directors. 

Long Range Calendar Agenda Items 

May 5, 2025: 

• FY 25-26 Budget and Workplan
• Short Range Transit Plan: Existing Conditions, Goals & Objectives
• YATC Update: Corridor Prioritization and Evaluation

July 7, 2025: 

• Yolo 80 Managed Lanes Project Update

August 25, 2025: TBD 

November 3, 2025: TBD 

Future Items (Exact timing TBD): 

• Short Range Transit Plan Discussion Draft
• ADA Paratransit Policy and Service Update

33


	5.pdf
	ADP6573.tmp
	Overview of Grand Jury Report
	Fourth & Hope’s East Beamer Campus
	Grand Jury Findings and Recommendations for Yolo Transportation District

	YoloTD Response to Grand Jury
	Client Surveys
	Option 1: Expanding Fixed-Route Service to Northeast Woodland
	Option 2: Expanding BeeLine Service to Northeast Woodland
	Background
	BeeLine Expansion Considerations
	Expanding BeeLine Service with Performance Degradation
	Expanding BeeLine Service with Performance Preservation

	Option 3: Van Expansion / YoloTD Shuttle
	Summary of Feasible Options

	YoloTD Staff Recommendation





